
November 7, 2014 

FedX 

Marc Jones, Esq. 
Boston Reg. Office 
SEC 
33 Arch St., 23rd Floor 
Boston, MA 02110-1424 

RE: Administrative Proceeding File No. 3-16155 -- Notice of Appearance 

Dear Mr. Jones, 

Please accept this as Notice that: 

1. I am currently representing myself in this matter. 

Office of Administrative 
Law Judges 

2. The address above is my home address, home phone number and cell phone number. 

3. I work at Horseless Carraige, LLC located at 754 Elm St., Milford, NH 03055 with a phone number 
of 603-554-8358 and this is the most likely place for me to be contacted during working hours. 

4. The best phone number to reach me at is my cell phone 603-718-4583 because many times I am 

not at the business location but on the road conducting business. 

5. I request that all papers and pleadings be directed to me at my home address. This does not 

constitute a change from the current practice of the SEC in this matter. 

I am not an attorney and have reviewed Rules of Practice however I do not pretend to understand the 

procedures completely. Please excuse any misunderstanding on my part and know that I will correct 

any error or omission as soon as practical if it is brought to my attention. 

Attestation 

I certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America, that the information 

and statements made in this document, including exhibits and any other information submitted, are 

true and correct, and that I am signing this form as a free and voluntary act. 

Signature: Date: 

Nicholas Rowe 

(/1./.f'-( 



November 7, 2014 

Fed X 

Marc Jones, Esq. 

Boston Reg. Office 

SEC 

33 Arch St., 23rd Floor 

Boston, MA 02110-1424 

RE: Administrative Proceeding File No. 3-16155 

Dear Mr. Jones, 

Office- of Administrative 
Law Judges 

RECEIVED 

NOV 10 2014 

Please accept this as my answer to the Order Instituting Administrative Proceedings in the above 

referenced matter. 

I first address two issues and then proceed with my answer. 

Venue Location 

As mentioned in my May 27, 20141etter, and again in my July 17,2014 response to your letter dated 

May 14, 2014. I request that the location of any venue for any hearing be Boston, Massachusetts. I am 

destitute, any location further away than Boston would be the equivalent of a refusal to allow me a 

hearing. 

SEC did not produce an important document 

For some reason the SEC in its production of documents per rule 230, forwarded the SEC 6-12-12 

deficiency letter in its correspondence file but did not include Rowe's answers to the allegations made 

by the SEC in its 6-12-12 deficiency letter. This oversight in the production of document on 9-26-2014 

has been corrected by including that correspondence between Mr. Rowe and the SEC on the shared 

documents CD. The SEC may wish to review this document because it clearly identifies many material 

mistakes in the 6-12-12 deficiency letter. 

The documents that Mr. Rowe needs to share with ttw r j de available on the shared 

documents CD. If you wish to make copies loc;:>" I' \/ / D � \� 1 his media, please feel free 

to contact him. �J '\ S te) / 

\\e\ 

j/&Ji 



Answer to the Order Instituting Administrative Proceedings 

Allegations by the NH Bureau of Securities are denied 

All allegations in the consent order with the State of NH Bureau of Securities Regulation 03-12-2012 

are denied by Mr. Rowe. Furthermore, the noted section of that order by Jill M. Peterson in her SEC 

communication to Mr. Rowe dated 9-23-14 page 2 section I I  B. 3. about unsuitable leveraged and 

inverse ETFs was disproven by one of the nation's top independent statisticians whose data clearly 

showed the portfolios using the strategies experienced approximately 41% less risk than the market as 

measured by standard deviation. These reports are found in the FINRA arbitration documents and are 

available for review by the SEC staff on the enclosed shared documents CD. 

No consent was given by Mr. Rowe in the NH Bureau of Securities Regulation 03-12-2012 Consent 

Order 

Mr. Rowe did not consent to the State of NH Bureau of Securities Regulation 03-12-2012 Consent Order 

as referred to by Jill M. Peterson in her SEC communication to Mr. Rowe dated 9-23-14 page 2 section I I  

B. 2 .. Mr. Rowe could not have consented because in any contract apparent consent may b e  vitiated 

because of mistake, fraud, innocent misrepresentation, duress, or undue influence. Mr. Rowe plans to 
ask the courts to vacate the consent decree after the conclusion of his bankruptcy cases which were 

brought about because of the State of NHs faulty examination of Mr. Rowe and its subsequent abusive 

manipulation of the FINRA arbitration process. The reason for waiting until after the bankruptcies are 

over is because three ongoing legal matters would be overwhelming to Mr. Rowe and make a fair 

contest impossible. Mr. Rowe asked for a delay with the SEC action for the same reason as well, but this 

was denied. 

During the discussions between the NH Bureau of Securities Regulation (11Bureau") as represented by 

Jeff Spill and Eric Fortier, and Mr. Rowe (with his attorney present) Mr. Rowe made it clear he would 

never sign the consent order, and he wanted a hearing so he could show every time the claimants 

perjured themselves in the FINRA arbitration and prove that the Bureau made a mistake by depending 

on the perjurers testimony. The following statements were made by the representatives of the Bureau: 

"we have to find advisers like you guilty because we are an unfunded department." "If you do not sign 

this order we will hold a hearing and you will be found guilty"(underlined section was emphasized by 

them). They clarified in that discussion that there would not be an independent judiciary, that there 

would not be protections of appeals like there are in the courts. They stated that the fine would be 

$200,000.00 to $250,000.00 instead of the $20,000.00 in the Consent Order, they reemphasized you will 

lose and will be paying between $200- $250,000.00 and they stated "this is outside of bankruptcy, you 

will be ruined". I felt like I was being held up at gun point. The attorney with me on the phone 

conference asked to put them on hold. Once the Bureau was on hold he told me "Nick they are the 

mob. You are being held up. They are requiring you to pay protection money exactly the same as the 

mob. But these guys are in government. You are screwed. You have no option when dealing with these 

guys." 

The corrupt or inept representatives of the Bureau that dealt with Mr. Rowe made the MISTAKE of 

believing the stories of perjurers and liars. These mistakes were compounded by the Bureau's refusal to 



look for either confirmation or non-confirmation of the claimant's lies in the documents. The lies 

became the crux of the Bureau's Consent Decree making this a material mistake. 

The corrupt or inept representatives of the Bureau that dealt with Mr. Rowe used DURESS or UNDUE 

INFLUENCE in making it clear he would not receive a fair hearing. 

The corrupt or inept representatives of the Bureau that dealt with Mr. Rowe committed a FRAUD by 

ignoring the duties of their office to conduct an honest and fair examination of the lies perpetrated by 

the claimants and seeking to gain financially by funding their "unfunded department'' thus ensuring 

their paychecks. 

The SEC must not rely on an unreliable State of NH Bureau of Securities Regulation for its 

investigation. 

If the SEC relies on the "Consent Order" then the SEC joins the State of NH Bureau of Securities 

Regulation in its criminal misconduct, mistakes, use of duress or undue influence, and fraud. Mr. Rowe 

seeks that which has been denied him until now, a fair hearing of the facts. Mr. Rowe is confident that a 

review of the facts will show that the morally weak and greedy complainants lied in an effort to regain 

2008 market loses and 6-7 million additional dollars because of their claims of fraud (disallowed by 

FINRA arbitrators). The claimants could not win based on the data, documents or scientific 

measurements so they used lies and defamation of character as a tactic. Sadly the State of NH Bureau 

of Securities Regulation was taken in by this tactic. 

The fact that the "Bureau" did not conduct a proper audit or investigation of Focus Capital was made 
clear by: 

· 

1. Their request to be present at the FINRA arbitration hearing. The department argued vehemently 
they needed to be present at the arbitration hearings; they stated to Mr. Rowe's attorney "we need to 
be present in order to help in our investigation". Mr. Rowe through his attorney did not permit this as 
he deemed it would be prejudicial to the arbitrators. Mr. Rowe did however arrange for the rough 
drafts of the transcripts to be forwarded each day as they became available and it is his understanding 
that this happened within 24 hours of the close of each day. 

2. Their dependence on the word of the claimants rather than looking at documents that proved the 
claimants perjured themselves well over 100 times in the arbitration. If the "Bureau" had reviewed the 
documents that proved beyond a shadow of any doubt the gross perjury and lies of the claimants they 
would not have depended on the statements of the claimants, but rather, conducted a proper 
examination of the documents. 

3. Their releasing of their "Order to Cease and Desist" (signed on 8-29-2012) before they could review 
the cross examination of the claimants from the transcripts. The claimants were not crossed until all 
claimants had testified as a tactic of the defense so that these perjurers would not learn how to 
manipulate their lying testimony as each was confronted with their perjury, therefore the last day or 
two of the arbitration was crucial to the Bureau in learning all the facts. 

4. The Bureau could have easily determined that the claimants were repeatedly lying by a thorough 
review of supporting documents. They did not choose to conduct such a review. 



The Bureau's arraigning for wide publication of their 110rder to Cease and Desistu (signed on 8-29-2012) 

in order to manipulate and influence the arbitrators during the arbitrators deliberations was shocking to 
those who knew the facts of this case and Focus Capital clients who just signed amendments with Focus 
at the Bureau's request. The largest News Paper in the state of NH made this front page news, this 
could not have been missed by the arbitrators (exhibit 3). 

The Bureau had no compelling reason to produce the "Order to Cease and Desist". They had an 

agreement with Mr. Rowe and Focus Capital based on their written communication of 8-3-2012 (exhibit 

2). The conditions of this letter were agreed to and met by Mr. Rowe and Focus Capital. There was no 

event between 8-3-2012 and 8-29-2012 that would cause any reasonable person to believe Mr. Rowe or 

Focus Capital had reneged on the agreement. To any reasonable person the sole purpose of the "Order 

to Cease and Desist" was to influence the FINRA arbitrators, sadly it appears that is what happened. 

For the remainder of this response, Mr. Rowe attaches the letter he addressed to Kevin M. Kelcourse on 

July 17, 2014 because the very same reasons there should not have been an action filed against Mr. 

Rowe apply to the hearing as well. This is exhibit 1 and it should be considered part of this text. 

Attestation 

I certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America, that the information 

and statements made in this document, including exhibits and any other information submitted, are 

true and correct, and that I am signing this form as a free and voluntary act. 

Signature: 

Nicholas Rowe 

Service list: 

. 3 copies to: 

Marc Jones, Esq. 
Boston Reg. Office 
SEC 
33 Arch St., 23rd Floor 
Boston, MA 02110-1424 

3 copies to: 

Honorable Brenda P. Murray 
Chief Administrative law Judge 
SEC 
100 F Street, N.E. 

Washington, DC 20549-2557 

Date: 



July 17,2014 

Kevin M.  Kelcourse 
Assistant Director, Division of Enforcement 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
33 Arch St., 23rd. Floor 
Boston, MA 02110-1424 

RE: Response to your letter dated May 14, 2014 

In the matter of Focus Capital Wealth Management (B-Q2822) 

Dear Mr. Kelcourse: 

Thank you for this opportunity to formally respond to your letter dated May 14, 2014. 

In my attached response, I set out many compelling reasons why the commission should not file 
an action against me (Nicholas Rowe)., or Focus Capital .  

Please accept the following attachment as my formal statement of reasons and arguments why 
the commission should not file an action against me or my firm. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas B. Rowe 
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REASONS AND ARGUMENTS WHY THE COMMISSION SHOULD NOT FILE AN 
ACTION AGAINST NICHOlAS ROWE AND FOCUS CAPITAL 

In a letter dated 5-14-14 Kevin Kelcourse wrote to me (Nicholas Rowe) regarding the matter of Focus 

Capital Wealth Management (B-02822). I n  this letter he notes: 

'7he staff of the SEC has made a preliminary determination to recommend that the commission file an enforcement action 
against you. This proposed action would allege that on March 8, 2013, you consented to an order issued by the NH Bureau of 
Securities Regulation In the matter of Nicholas Rowe, et a/., COM2011-0037 barring you and Focus Capital Wealth Management 
from securities lfcensure in the State of NH. The order alleged that you and Focus Capkal engaged In an Investment strategy 
involving leveraged and Inverse exchange traded funds (ETFs) that was unsuitable for your clients and thus in violation of NH 
law prohibiting investment advisers from engaging in unethical business practices. You and Focus Capital were also ordered to 
cease and desist from violating NH RSA 421-8:3 and RSA 421-84 and were ordered to pay $20,000 (a $5,000 fine plus the costs 
of the investigation) and restitution. N 

Mr. Kelcourse also stated in this letter: '7he Commission has a procedure to permit persons involved in its 
investigations to present reasons or arguments why the Commission should not file an action against them." 

I replied by letter on 5-27-14 requesting a stay until my two bankruptcies were completed and noted 
that *three ongoing proceedings would perpetrate an extreme hardship effectively making a fair presentation and hearing with 

the SEC impossible."' In the event a stay was not granted I requested a delay stating the following 

compelling reasons: 

1) "My wife has a degenerative disease known as Myasthenia Gravis and this requires time to manage and to visit 
specialists that are approximately 97 miles away requiring a drive ofjust shy of two hours one way. 

2) 1 am in not one but two ongoing bankruptcies and no reasonable person would think anyone In two bankruptcies could 
possibly prepare properly or care for 3/ega/ matters at once. 

3) Due to the successful Insurance fraud attempt by dalmants and the ineptitude or corruption of the New Hampshire 
securities deportment who successfully influenced an arbitration panel, I have lost everything and am now destitute 
and have yet to meet my monthly living costs for a single month since November 2012, therefore I work an average of 
10-12 hours a day 7 days a week in an attempt to care for my family's needs, meanwhile my family survives only 
because of the kindness of others who I believe are aware of the abuse of the State of NH in this matter. This work 
schedule leaves very little time to work on a presentation. 

4) 1/ the SEC is interested in the truth it will wish to allow me adequate time to prepare a full and complete presentation. 
1/ it is interested in "padding the stats* then nothing I do will influence the SEC to allow the truth about the injustice 
perpetrated on me by the State of NH, the Claimants and the Arbitrators to came to light. 

For these and other reasons I ask for 120 day delay from the date of notification to me of any delay.* 

Keven was unmoved by these requests. No stay or delay was granted. In a phone conversation on 7-18-

14 Keven stated the reason for not granting a stay or extension was that it was in the public interest. He 
noted I could go to another state and set up shop as an SEC adviser. I stated that I would be happy to 

sign a legal agreement with the SEC agreeing not to work as an adviser until this matter was resolved 

with the SEC. Furthermore, I made it clear that I currently have no plans to work in any capacity in the 

industry and I am not now working in any capacity in the industry. When Keven still insisted that no 

extension would be granted even though the potential public threat was eliminated, I replied that this 

was beginning to look like an effort to "pad the stats" rather than an effort to have a fair and complete 

finding of facts. To his credit Keven did say that he was confident his report would not be filed 
until after 7-18-14 and if I delivered a reply to his office by then he would include it in any 
communication he forwarded. 



1 therefore present the following compelling reasons why the Commission should not file an 

·action against me (Nicholas Rowe), or Focus capital. 

According to the May 14, 2014 1etter from Mr. Kelcourse the SEC does not rely on any finding of 
facts by its examiners, but rather seeks to rely on the State of New Hampshire (NH) for its due 
d iligence and investigative work in establishing cause for an enforcement action against Mr. 
Rowe. "This proposed action would allege that on March 8, 2013, you consented to an order issued by the NH 
Bureau of Securities Regulation In the matter of Nicholas Rowe. et a/., COM2011-()037 barring you and Focus 
Capital Wealth Management from securities licensure in the State of NH". 

This is a flawed strategy for several reasons. 

1. This strategy will only bring about justice if NH did a proper investigation and came to 
proper conclusions. If NH relied on testimony of individuals who sought to deceive the 
state in order to commit Insurance fraud, then the SEC makes itself a victim to those 
same individuals by depending on the conclusions reached by a deceived securities 
department in NH. There is a clear and convincing record from the arbitration showing 
this is exactly what happened. 

2. If the employees of the State of NH a llowed themselves to be deceived by 
unsubstantiated claims of individuals because of a bias to convict an adviser in order to 
"fund their unfunded department'' and insure their paychecks, then the SEC, by relying 
on the states conclusions, reinforces and perpetuates the injustice on the innocent 
adviser. 

3. No creditable evidence has ever been presented in any venue which would back up the 
findings by the State of NH, furthermore there is a plethora of data to support findings 
that the claims found in the March 8, 2013 consent drafted by the State of NH are lies. 
The SEC need go no further than  the records of the arbitration to enlighten itself of the 
truth in this matter. 

4. There is ample circumstantial evidence the NH securities department sought to 
influence the arbitration panel. One can only surmise why they would engage in such 
behavior, however one possibility is they were convinced by the lavish storytelling and 
fraudulent l ies of the defendants, and sought to convict someone they truly believed 
was guilty. 

5. The consent order was signed under undue duress when representatives of the NH 
Bureau of Securities Regulation indicated in a phone conversation with Mr. Rowe and 
his attorney that: 
a) There would not be a fair hearing and 
b) The outcome had been fixed and 
c) The monetary penalty would be at least 10 times greater if there was a hearing and 
d) They a lso indicated that any penalty would survive bankruptcy. 
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6. Mark Connolly former Deputy Secretary of State and Director of New Hampshire Bureau 
of Securities Regulation (he held this position 2002 to 2009) wrote what could be 
described as a whistleblower book entitled "Cover-Up -- One Man's Pursuit of the Truth 
Amid the Government's Failure to End a Ponzi Scheme." In this book he describes the 
same type of d isregard for the facts and shoddy investigations as I experienced by the 
NH Bureau of Securities Regulation. It appears that once he left office in protest over 
the lack of action on the government officials who permitted the decade long FRM Ponzi 
scheme fiasco all restraint was lost in the securities department as well .  

For these and other reasons the SEC must not rely on the consent order issued by the NH 
Bureau of Securities Regulation In The Matter of N icholas Rowe, et al., COM2011-0037 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

On March 8, 2013 the State of NH  took action to bar Nicholas Rowe and his firm Focus Capital, 
Inc. from working in the investment field .  Nicholas Rowe consented to the action however he 
did not in any way agree with any finding or action by the State of NH as is so stated in the 
consent decree !1>. As part of this agreement the state demanded Mr. Rowe give up his 
freedom of speech rights 12> that every citizen of the United States believes is their birth right. 
Why would the State of NH insist on Mr. Rowe giving up the right to speak freely about the 
State of NH's behavior in this matter? I believe it is  because they did not want their deplorable 
and perhaps i l legal behavior in this matter to be exposed. 

The decision by the State of NH was based largely on the statements and actions of a few 
former clients of Mr. Rowe. What fol lows is a small background statement so the reader can 
u nderstand the context, and an extremely smal l  sample of false statements given under oath, 
showing that these people were flagrant liars. These are in many cases the exact same lies they 
related to the State of NH and which the state relied on in their action taken against Nicholas 
Rowe and Focus Capital .  These statements can be found in the records of the FINRA arbitration 
which are a public record because they were forwarded to the State of NH Bureau of Securities. 
Furthermore the consent order issued by the NH Bureau of Securities Regulation In The Matter 
of Nicholas Rowe, et al ., COM2011-0037 is virtually a cut and paste of the original complaint 
from the courts and subsequent arbitration process. 

(I) "without admitting or denying the Statement of Facts and Conclusions of Law. Respondents do hereby 
consent to the entry of this Consent Order" 

12l "The Respondent may not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement, 
including in regulatory filings or otherwise, denying, directly or indirectly, any allegation in this Consent 
Order or creating the impression that the Consent Order is without factual basis. " 

Some Background Information for Nicholas Rowe 
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Mr. Rowe worked in the consulting, insurance and investment fields from about the year 1986 -
.2012. He owned a firm, Focus Capital, I nc. from about 2001-2012. Mr. Rowe was well l iked 
and respected by clients and others. Neither Mr. Rowe nor his firm had ever had a complaint or 
even a concern until after the h istoric market col lapse of 2008. 

In 2008 the US stock market experienced a historic col lapse the l ikes of which had not been 
seen since 1929. In the years following this event Mr. Rowe, with written client approval, 
implemented various hedging strategies in an attempt to reduce risk in client accounts. 

Mr. Rowe met regularly, or was available to meet, throughout each year with his clients for 
d iscussions about risk, performance and any topic a client wished to d iscuss. In  the years after 
2008 some clients wished to take more risk than Mr. Rowe was comfortable providing for them 
and they left the firm to find an advisor that would  accommodate their appetite for greater risk 
and potential returns. In al l  such cases Mr. Rowe wished them the very best and instructed his 
staff to deal with them with the utmost courtesy, reminding his staff that these former clients 
remained friends of Mr. Rowe. 

However there were a few clients who hoped that by suing Mr. Rowe they could recapture 
losses suffered as a result of the historic 2008 stock market collapse. 

This presented a problem. It is generally understood you cannot sue an adviser for damages if 
he has reduced risk in your account with your full knowledge and consent. The solution for 
some was simple and straightforward : They l ied. And that is what the record shows they did. 
Later in this document some of their l ies and perjury documented in the public record are 
recounted. 

All records of the State of NH in this matter are a matter of public record. 

The records of this matter can be obtained by a freedom of information request to the State of 
NH. Both parties in the arbitration agreed to forward the transcripts of each day's hearings and 
copies of all exhibits to the State of NH thus making the entire arbitration process a matter of 
public record. 

What the record shows about potential conflicts of interest at Focus Capital. 

First and foremost the record shows that Mr. Rowe invested his own money in the same 
manner in which he invested his client's money. 
2) The record shows that since January of 2006 neither Mr. Rowe, nor his firm, nor any 
employee of Mr. Rowe's or his firm received commissions on the sale of securities. 
3) The record shows that Mr. Rowe's firm was paid fees from client accounts based on the 
value of the account. This is known in the industry as "fee only'' and it is generally understood 
to reward a firm for good performance and punish it for poor performance. 
4) The record shows that Mr. Rowe was paid salary and his employees were paid either salary 
or hourly. 
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5)  The record shows at least as far back as January 2006 that no one at the firm was ever paid a 

bonus for meeting any sales goal. 

All the above points were in practice to eliminate any incentive for anyone at the firm to have 

anything but the clients' best interest as the prime motivator. They were in place to eliminate 
conflicts of interest with regard to investing and compensation. It is impossible to truthfully 
claim Mr. Rowe invested client money one way and his own another. It is impossible to 

truthfully claim any compensation arrangement for anyone at the firm incentivized them to act 

in any way other than to put the client's welfare first. 

False statements given under oath. 

Francis Straccia 

This matter began with a letter of complaint submitted by Francis Straccia to Focus Capital in 
which she made many false claims and even some claims that were impossible for Mr. Rowe or 

anyone at his firm to have committed. In that letter she demanded payment of money and 
threatened to notify the State of NH of her accusations if Mr. Rowe did not pay. 

Some of the claims in this letter are helpful because they indicate the level of credibility of this 
client through claims that have not been doctored or polished by a lawyer. 

Some of the claims were simply impossible to be true, one such example was the charge of 
churning. This of course is impossible for an adviser who receives no commissions, such as Mr. 

Rowe. 

The most important fact of this complaint letter is not what is in it, but rather what is not in it. 

In the original letter of complaint she never mentions any claim of falsifying documents or 
changing answers to the questions on any of the paperwork. After meeting with a lawyer this 

claim became the crux of the complaint. At the arbitration Ms. Straccia stated that virtually 

every answer she gave relating to her income and appetite for risk had been changed to 
indicate she could handle more risk than she really could. If that was true, why had it not 

occurred to her to include it in the very comprehensive complaint letter that she concocted on 

her own? In fact, if it were true why did she fail to call the office and say 'I just got the copies of 

all the paper work I filled out at your firm the other day in the mail and I don't remember 
answering the questions this way.' 

All completed forms for clients were mailed to them for their records; clients would 

often bring these forms back to the firm on their next appointment for help organizing 

them in client record keeping folders retained by the clients. Testimony was given by 

claimants that review meetings were held approximately six times a year. 
The answer is simple; there was no truth to the case and nothing in the paperwork supported 
the claim. The case could not be successful without the outrageous claim that virtually all the 

paperwork had been falsified and none of the doctored responses in the paperwork had been 

discovered in all the years that she had been at the firm. However even with the fictitious 
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wrongs; this claim had no chance to stand unless there were several other people who would 
be willing to join in on the l ie. Because there would be no evidence of the wrong, there needed 
·to be a number of people who would back up her story. Furthermore no unscrupulous lawyer 
had yet helped in constructing the attack. 

I n  the arbitration Frankie Straccia feigned a low risk tolerance and ignorance about 
investments. However on cross-examination she admitted deta il ed discussions about 
commodities, peak oil and cross currency transactions. She also admitted intimate knowledge 
of exploration geology, even that she was an editor for a Shell Oil trade magazine. It is also a 
fact that she told Mr. Rowe she had raced cars in what she described as  the powder puff circuit. 
An email she sent to Focus Capital on November gth 2009 was presented wherein she talked 
about the potential of a double dip in the markets. She noted that she regularly received and 
filed copies of paperwork from Focus Capital and despite earlier testimony that Mr. Rowe had 
falsified virtually every answer she gave when he filled it out with her, she never once called 
Focus Capital when she was a client to mention any question was not answered correctly. 

It came to l ight during her testimony that she sought to find other clients of Focus Capital who 
might be unhappy with the 2008 performance so they could "find a new adviser" (as though the 
only way to find a new adviser was by talking to another current client of Focus Capita l ) .  In 
truth she needed others to join forces in an attempt to extort a payment from Focus Capita l .  

Why the need to find others to join her in making these claims? I submit that she knew she was 
lying and she hoped that if she could find others willing to join her in her lies she would become 
a greater threat through the strength in numbers philosophy, thus creating a greater incentive 
for Focus Capital to settle, in order to keep these false claims from becoming public. This is a 
known tactic used by unscrupulous people to, in effect; extort money from 'honest business 
people. The problem for her was that Mr. Rowe lives by a philosophy of never paying extortion 
money to anyone for any reason. How much more so will Mr. Rowe not pay extortion money 
to someone who says they will l ie publicly in order to create the extortion opportunity. 

The public record of the arbitration shows that Ms. Straccia joined together with another client, 
Mary Beth Lambert in the hopes of recapturing losses they suffered as a result of the historic 
2008 market collapse. However it was not enough to find another person, they had to be 
willing to l ie as well .  Mary Beth Lambert proved to be just such a person .  

Mary Beth Lambert 

Mary Beth Lambert, among other l ies, made a fraud claim about stolen funds from her account 
in the original complaint filed in court. This fictitious theft was related to a private rea l  estate 
investment known as Addess. 

The record shows her account statements from her brokerage firm that she received every 
month truthfully report no such theft. She was treated exactly the same as other investors in 
Addess and made just shy of a 10% profit on a commercial real estate investment during and 
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through the worst financial crisis in 80 years. The claim against Addess and Mr. Rowe {as one of 
. the managing partners of Addess) were dismissed because not one word was spoken, nor was 
any document presented, on the matter. The only purpose of this claim was to create bad 
press. 'Nick stole money from this lady'. 

Would you ever put faith in anything this person ever said on any topic after learning she lied in 
such a bold and outrageous fashion, making this false statement under oath to a court? The 
record shows this was only one of many such outrageous lies she made under oath. 

Mary Beth lambert is utterly undependable as a witness to anything. 

Ronald Ferrante Jr. 

The next client to get involved was Ronald Ferrante Jr. This client's behavior makes the 
aforementioned clients look like saints. Ron Jr. has experience complaining about other 
advisers in order to extract money from them. He jumped on the opportunity as soon as he  
saw that there was a chance to  victimize another adviser for profit. Some of the more 
egregious lies that can be found in the record are: 

1) Ron Jr. represented himself to the panel as having virtually no understanding of investments. 
He also made statements: 
a) that indicated he was only 'vaguely familiar  with Treasury Bills' . 
b) that at the time of the arbitration he had only 'a little understanding of leveraged and 
inverse ETFs.' 
c) that 'he had no interest in using options as investments in any account he had beneficial 
interest in.' 
On the cross examination it was d iscovered that over the years Ron Jr. had accounts held at 
ScotTrade, a ll of which had no adviser assigned to them and were self directed (this means 
ScotTrade would have only given access and passwords to Ron Ferrante Jr. and would not have 
knowingly dealt with anyone else). His 09-30-2005 account statement ending in 787 (copies of 
these statements are in the record) shows Ron invested in Mutual Funds, Stocks, ETFs 
{exchange traded funds) and closed end funds. The types of investments include gold mining, 
oil refining, oil exploration, palladium, and platinum mining. He had ownership interests in 
USA, Japan, Finland, Canada, Netherlands, India, and South Africa. This list is by no means a ll 
inclusive as he had about 60 holdings in this one account. He also admitted on cross 
examination to being a partner in many partnerships. Hardly the holdings of someone with no 
investment experience. 
Ron Ferrante Jr. further admitted that he was trading in options and leveraged ETFs in his 
Scot Trade accounts beginning in 2006 and the statements showed he continued trading in 
these accounts with options and leveraged and inverse ETFs up until one month before the 
commencement of the arbitration hearing. This was no smal l  test account; he contributed over 
$880,000.00 on or about 12-31-2010 and managed to lose about 25% or about $200,000.00 by 
3-31-12 while the market went up by about 12%. This is a man who is comfortable with h igh 
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risk trading even entering the trades himself. His statements a )  b) and c) above were out and 
·out lies. 

2)  Ron Jr testified that Mr. Rowe victimized many religious people who had few funds and could 
easily be taken advantage of. In one emotional outburst he exclaimed "I know this one person 
in particular, Carolyn H ilger. She's a widow, Her husband d ied and left her money. Their house 
is about to be sold. Her money's run out." This was a particularly moving demonstration, the 
entire room grew quiet as all eyes were on Ron and everyone felt h is pain for this poor woman. 

This statement by Ron Jr. consists of 5 sentences. let's number the lies he manages to 
incorporate in this one short fabrication. 1) This woman, after both her parents passed away, 
inherited a very large sum amassed by her father. She did a great deal of planning, both while 
her husband was alive, and after his passing. 2) In time she gifted the bulk of her financial 
assets to another legal entity. That entity is managed by at l east one trustee, an attorney in  
Portsmouth NH who was happy with the services provided by Focus Capital .  The woman has 
had no  ownership interest in her former investment assets for well over 10 years. 3) The value 
of the investment had not run out but was just shy of $300,000.00 at the time of the Ron Jr. 
testimony (I can provide a redacted copy of the statement). 4) Virtually the only asset she kept 
in her possession was her house; however she had not l ived in the house for many years at the 
time of Ron Jr.s testimony. 5) The woman has dementia and has lived in a nursing home for 
many years (Ron Jr. knows this and has visited her there over the years). 6) As of the date of 
Ron's testimony the former home of this woman was not sold and was not on the market. 
When I checked a few years after Ron's testimony, the home was still not sold or on the 
market. Apparently the members of her family that are responsible for her did not see the 
need to sell the home. 

· Mr. Rowe d id not make any of these facts known to the panel as it would have been a violation 
of his privacy policy with the innocent parties who in fact had not made a claim and they had 
confirmed to M r. Rowe they were pleased with his management of the investable assets at the 
time. 

The documents and brokerage statements to back up these facts are available to anyone should 
they ever wish to correct the grievous wrong committed by the arbitrators and the State of NH 
because of being taken in by these liars. 

In just five sentences two of which were; I know a woman. She is a widow. Mr. Ferrante Jr. 
manages to construct six lies! This is by no means an exceptional example of the skill this man 
used in lying and manipulation of the emotions of the members of the panel. 
The arbitrators should not have a llowed this testimony, it is  pure hearsay. That fact that they 
regularly a llowed such wild stories with no basis in fact shows the utter failure of a system that 
was originally designed to bring about a swifter, l ess expensive form of justice. 

This man has to be the most despicable of the lot. To make up stories with no basis of truth 
and to use other innocent people who despise lying and extortion and are not even aware of 
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his using them to further his attempt to steal funds from Mr. Rowe, who remains the friend of 
those people ... there just are no words to express the l ikes of such a person. 

Ron Ferrante Jr. was singled out by the attorney for the defense in the arbitration hearing when 
he stated that Ron Jr's. perjury and behavior amounted to fraud. 

This client cannot be believed. He is one of only two people I have met in my life who wil l  l ie 
even when the truth would do neither h im nor anyone else any harm. It is my impression that 
he convinces himself of the lie he has concocted. Doing this to such a point that I have 
witnessed hini be shocked when presented with evidence that disproves the l ie, he going so far 
as to say "I don't believe the evidence" of the truth and refusing to look at documents that 
disprove his lies. It is as though he must ignore the factual evidence, his l ie being more 
important to him than the truth. I am sure this condition must be written up in psychological 
l iterature somewhere, but not being an expert in this area, I would not know where to find it. 

This person is worse than a liar. He is worse than someone who commits fraud. He is a danger 
to anyone who has knowledge of his true nature and could potentially expose him. Mr. Rowe is 
only one of many that Ron Jr. has left in his wake and threatened to vil ify, or has vilified. I am 
the fourth adviser that I know of that Ron has victimized by these tactics. Two of us fought him 
and lost due to his perjury, resulting in both of us being barred by the State of NH Bureau of 
Securities and two paid the extortion price and continue to work in the industry to this day. He 
has a lso victimized a neighbor and several ministers in his former religious congregation, in 
every case he claims to be the victim .  

Ron Ferrante Jr. is utterly untrustworthy and any testimony b y  him on any topic has no 
credibility whatsoever. 

Ron Ferrante Sr. and Anne Ferrante 

The l ies these two told were the most surprising to me. I did not think they were the type of 
people to get caught up in this type of fraud. 

I can have some empathy for them however. The Ferrante Srs. are the parents of Ron Ferrante 
Jr. I have already written about how Ron convinces himself of h is lies. Imagine how convincing 
he becomes to anyone who will give ear to his cla ims. He comes across as sincerely concerned 
for those he wishes to attract to his side of an issue. Ron Jr. himself related this story at the 
arbitration (now a public record with the State of NH): 

He stated that in October of 2008 he  suffered a complete mental breakdown and his parents 
were on occasion checking on him at his house in the early morning hours. 1:00am was 
mentioned one time when they found him in lying in the street in front of his house (this is no 
small road it has a speed l imit of about 35 - 45 mph) he stated that he was committed to a 
hospital and made a ward of the State of NH "under the control of a judge". He stated "I lost 
the right to have and use floss. I couldn't wear sneakers. I couldn't wear underwear. 1 didn't 
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have a toothbrush. I didn't have a telephone. I lived in a small room about 15 feet square." He 
a lso described the breakup of his marriage describing himself as a victim in the matter (despite 
·the fact that he cheated on his wife and she d ivorced him for adultery, these facts a re verifiable 
in court documents). He described other matters a lways describing himself as the victim. 

Who would not want to protect their son, not just from himself, but from all potential threats? 
Each of the parents indicated they would do anything to protect and care for their son. 

H is parents expressed concern for their son who came to them sometime after getting out of 
the hospital, no doubt in a mental ly fragile state. They were disturbed enough by the stories 
they heard about wrongdoing to not even cal l  Mr. Rowe and ask him about these al legations, 
something that may, if they learned their son was delusional, require his re-hospitalization, or, 
they could simply believe his fantastic stories. Therefore not giving any opportunity to learn 
the truth about their son and al lowing them to continue living in a state of denia l .  They chose 
the latter; I dare say many others would  do the same. The email record shows that Mr. Rowe 
several times reached out to Ron Sr. and offered to meet to discuss the claims he heard from 
his son. He ignored several of these until final ly contacting Mr. Rowe through h is lawyer Mr. 
Fuller, asking Mr. Rowe to stop attempting to contact Ron Sr. 

The major contribution of the Ferrante Srs. was to state that Mr. Rowe changed virtually every 
answer to questions they answered, so the paperwork would appear as though they could 
handle a h igher risk than they really could. This was important testimony because it would 
corroborate the false testimony from each of the other witnesses. They played their part well. 
They were very convincing as each of them stated they sat across from Mr. Rowe and answered 
Mr. Rowe's questions truthfully but that  Mr. Rowe had to have changed each a nswer as he 
wrote them down because they never would have answered them the way they now appear on 
the paper work. These claims can easily be proved to be lies for the following reasons: 

1) Copies of al l  paperwork were sent to all clients within a day or two of having been filled out 
for their review. The Ferrante Srs. acknowledged receiving these forms in the mail but never, 
not once, did they cal l  Mr. Rowe or Focus Capital to say any answer did not look correct to 
them. 

2) The Ferrantes (and all clients that matter) were sent paperwork to complete and sign and 
return to the Focus Capital office where it would be signed by Mr. Rowe, copied and then the 
copies would be sent back to the cl ient so they could review it and file it in their records. They 
swore under oath that they would not have answered the questions the way they themselves 
answer them, when they had the paperwork in their own home and Mr. Rowe was 25 miles 
away! This fact can be verified by simply looking at the top of each form for a date stamp. If 
there is a date stamp then that form was sent to the home of the client for completion and 
signatures. Some of the very forms they swore under oath that Mr. Rowe changed their 
answers to, while they were in his office were not filled out in his office at a ll, but by them in 
their own home, with al l the time in the world to review and answer them correctly. All 
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.incoming mail to an  advisory firm must have the top page date stamped when it is first opened 
as a matter of law. These clients clearly did not know this law when they concocted their l ies. 

I can have empathy and understanding for someone who does not wish to come out of denial 
about the mental condition of their son. However I must protest that to lie in such a way as to 
cause damage to another to protect yourself from that fact is going too far. Simply meeting 
with Mr. Rowe early on when their son first told them h is stories may well have protected them 
from being an.active part in their son's ufraud". 

People lie for one of two basic reasons. First, they misspeak or misremember, second, they 
knowingly l ie to create some benefit for themselves. The record shows the Sr. Ferrantes' l ied 
repeatedly over several hours, involving virtually every question on every form. They have 
shown by their wil lingness to repeatedly lie under oath that their testimony cannot be trusted. 
They are not credible witnesses. To make a mistake is one thing, however the evidence is · 

clear, this was no mistake on their part. They lied in hopes of gaining a substantial monetary 
reward that they believed was due them because of belief in the lies of their son. 

With such a r�cord of lying in an attempt to profit the Sr. Ferrantes' have proven beyond a 
shadow of a doubt they are not credible witnesses, nothing they say can be trusted. 

If the claimants were so obviously liars why d id the arbitrators find in their favor? I bel ieve for 
two basic reasons: incompetence and bowing to the influence by NH  Bureau of Securities. 

Facts from the FINRA arbitration are vital to the SEC because claims made in the FINRA 
hearing are virtually identical to the 'findings of the State of NH' in It's consent order, and to 
the public release of the allegations by the State of NH to the press. 

By examining the testimony, exhibits, and the claims made in the arbitration hearing, it is easy 
to determine if each accusation is valid or is a lie and if the State of NH acted properly in 
depending on the testimony of these very same people in taking action against Mr. Rowe and 
Focus Capital. 

Background information on FINRA Arbitration and on this case specifically. 

Arbitration is offered by FINRA as an alternative to the court system. It is final and binding, 
meaning there is no recourse when it is completed, therefore it is vital ly important that FINRA 
make sure they supply only highly competent and qual ified arbitrators, otherwise the parties 
could find themselves in a situation where incompetent arbitrators were hearing a case with 
l ittle hope of correcting the mistakes they make. Sadly, in this case the record is dear; two of 
the three arbitrators were woefully incompetent. 

Prior to the beginning of the Arbitration proceedings on the first day, the Chair Mr. Bil l 
McCarter stated: uwe do not have to fol low any law, we can give an award for any reason we 
see fit or not give an award for any reason, this is arbitration and arbitration is arbitrary, 1 
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repeat, arbitration is arbitrary". The following facts will show that is exactly what they did; 
.they made an arbitrary decision rather than basing it on fact, documents, or sound science. 

The Arbitrators made no finding of facts. 
The arbitrators could have clearly stated findings of facts. This would require identifying 
wrongdoing or mistakes made by Mr. Rowe. It also would preclude making an arbitrary 
decision based in part on the hearsay stories about other made up  victims and well played 
emotional testimony of these charlatans. 
Although the arbitrators made no finding of facts by examining the transcripts from the 
proceedings it is possible to perform a process of elimination of reasons. 

The Arbitrators were: 

Bill McCarter the chair 
Who was prone to fall ing asleep during the proceedings, even knocking over his glass of water 
whi le sleeping on one occasion. 
Wright Danenbarger 
A very competent and a lert gentleman who gave every appearance of wanting to do his best 
and be unbiased. 
Jane Venckus Zirlis 
A woman who was entirely in over her head. She often stated off the record, "I don't 
understand Exchange Traded Funds and they scare me." She can be seen repeatedly 
throughout the sessions asking what an m is, or "please help me understand" ... "I stil l  don't 
get it". She d id not know what the basic disclosure document (ADV) was, even after it had been 
expla ined to her. She appeared especia l ly moved by the emotional storytell ing and lies of Ron 
Ferrante Jr. 

The record shows all claimants lied, stating Mr. Rowe misstated their income to indicate it 
was higher than it was, in an effort to invest them in riskier investments. 

Upon cross-examination al l  admitted they l ied when confronted with their tax returns and then 
compared them to figures on the forms. The forms were either accurate or the income was 
listed as lower and as more conservative than  their income truly was. 

The record shows all claimants stated they were misrepresented by the answers Mr. Rowe 
recorded on virtually every one of their answers on forms and risk questionnaires. 

1) Several of these forms and questionnaires were sent in the mail to cla imants for them to 
review and sign, and then return in the mail . These are some of the very forms on which the 
claimants stated were filled out in Mr. Rowe's office and he wrote down the wrong answers in 
effect falsifying the documents. This shows they were utterly untrustworthy about any other 
claims about alleged paperwork misstatements. Date stamps on these forms verify these lies. 
2) All claimant copies of paperwork were routinely sent to the claimants within days of being 
filled out and they acknowledged getting them and fil ing them either in binders or boxes. There 
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was never any communication from any claimant that paperwork was filled out improperly in 
all the years they were clients. 

'3 )  There were detailed drawings and notes in the margins of many of these questionnaires, 
claimants explained Mr. Rowe was helping them to understand the questions because they 
were having d ifficulty answering one or more of the questions. How could he d raw a d iagram in 
the margin of the form show it to them and at the same time answer the question right next to 
the d iagram incorrectly without their notice? 

The record shows the use of ETFs (Exchange Traded Funds) cannot have been the reason for 
the award. 
Claimants stated they did not understand ETFs and did not authorize their use and would not 
h ave authorized their use had it been d isclosed they were being used in their accounts. 

1) ETFs were in claimant accounts from inception. If the cause for the award was use of ETFs 
then the award should have been based on claima nt returns from inception. A simple review of 
the award amounts and cla imant returns from inception shows this not to be the case. 
2) The use of every possible type of ETF was disclosed to all claimants on the proper disclosure 
form, ADV, which al l claimants acknowledged receiving in writing. 
3) The use of ETFs was disclosed on every advisory agreement for every claimant, on page one 
paragraph one. 

The record shows the hold period of ETFs for longer than one day could not have been the 
reason for the award. 

A great deal has been made by the State of NH Bureau of Securities and the claimants that in 
the FINRA 09-31 release from June 2009 the statement is made: "inverse and l everaged ETFs 
typical ly are not suitable for retai l  investors who plan to hold them for more than one trading 
session" 

1) These are not retail investors of a F INRA member firm; they are advisory clients of an 
advisory firm. This statement was not directed to advisory clients. Retai l  investors tend to buy 
a nd forget their investments. These advisory accounts were closely monitored by the advisor 
Mr. Rowe and h is firm Focus Capital. This l ine in this bulletin is not directed to, nor does it 
apply to, these clients. 
2) On the same page of the same document quoted above, the statement is made: "With 
respect to leveraged and inverse ETFs, this means that a firm must understand the terms and 
features of the funds, including how they are designed to perform, how they ach ieve that 
objective and the impact that market volatil ity, the ETF's use of leverage, and the customer's 
intended holding period will have on their performance." This language talks about the clients 
intended holding period. This implies a holding period of more than one trading session. 
3} At http://www.sec.gov/investor/pubs/leveraged etfs-alert.htm under the heading: 
Leveraged and Inverse ETF: Specialized Products with Extra Risks for Buy-and-Hold Investors; 

Heading: Things to Consider Before Investing; 2nd Bulleted Item; the statement is made: 
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. - "While there may be trading and hedging strategies that justify holding these investments 
longer than a day, buy-and-hold investors with an intermediate or long-term time horizon 
·should carefully consider whether these ETFs are appropriate for their portfolio" (Emphasis 
added). An intermediate or long-term time horizon by FINRA definition would equate to from 
three to longer than ten years. This guidance was followed by Mr. Rowe and Focus Capital. 
4) There are countless other notations from both FINRA and the SEC that holding periods can 
properly be longer than one day with these products but they will not be included here for 
reasons of space, however neither clai mants counsel nor the State of NH  Bureau of Securities 
division can be ignorant of these facts. 
5) Dr. McCann� expert for the claimants {also expert for the N H  Bureau of Securities) indicated 
that one to two weeks was an acceptable hold period for l everaged and inverse ETFs. He also 
indicated that under certain circumstances a longer period of time would be ok. 
6) Account performance for ETFs held for longer than one day in claimants' accounts that had 
utilized the Behavioral and/or FAAS strategies was $198,750.80. 
Any one of the above reasons gives cause to believe that no award could be given because of a 
hold period of longer than one day for the ETFs, but how can an  award be given on gains? It is 
impossible. 

The record shows the so called Basil strategy could not have been the reason for the award. 

Claimants argued that this strategy increased risk and resulted in  loses. 
1) Reports from an independent expert showed al l accounts invested in the strategy had gains. 
2) No one was invested in this strategy in 2008. The size of the award precludes any possibility 
that 2008 was not included in the consideration of the award. 
3)  Standard deviation analysis did not support the claim that the strategy increase risk. 
4) Anne Ferrante was given an award; she was never invested in this strategy. 

The record shows the Behavioral and FAAS strategies could not have been the reason for the 
award. 

Claimants argued in arbitration and the courts that the Behavioral and FAAS strategies exposed 
them to high risk. 
1 )  The earliest these strategies were used in claimant accounts was January 2009. Any award 
for them would not have included the h istoric market collapse of 2008. 
2) Anne Ferrante was given an award; she was never invested in these strategies. 
3 )  The Standard Deviation analysis performed by an independent expert clearly showed that on 
average cla imants as a group took 18% less risk than the markets over the entire time they 
were invested but took 41% less risk while invested in the Behavioral and FAAS strategies. The 
data does not support any argument that more risk was taken by these strategies. 
(Standard Deviation analysis was identified by Dr. McCann expert witness for the claimants {also the 

expert used by the State of NH Bureau of Securities) as Nthe most useful measure of risk of an investor's 
portfolio" and he also verified his statement that: ustandard deviation Is the correct measure of risk for 

Investors' entire portfolios.".) 
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The record shows that standard deviation analysis proves that the portfolios were not 
-exposed to high risk. This analysis rules out professional mismanagement. 

Claimants as a group took 18% l ess risk than the markets over the entire time they were 
invested but took 41% less risk while invested in the Behavioral and FMS strategies. The 
claimants make the claim Mr. Rowe took excessive risk in their portfolios. They pointed to the 
Behavioral and FAAS investment strategies as the reason for the greater risk. standard 
deviation the "most useful measure of risk of an investor's portfolion and nthe correct measure of risk 

for Investors' entire portfolios" shows the risk was not excessive and the portfolios risk was lower 
whi le the strategies were used. All portfolios managed by Focus Capital that used these 
strategies would have simila r  risk return characteristics to these. 

The record shows that excluding 2008 the claimants had gains over the life of their accounts. 
This rules out professional mismanagement. 

Claimants netted gains of $739,000 over the l ife of their accounts at Focus Capital, not including 
the historic stock market crash of 2008. 

The claim was made the fees were not properly disclosed and this amounted to fraud. 

In every single case where the fee had been adjusted on a claimant agreement the fee had 
been adjusted lower, than the fee schedule on the disclosure documents provided to the 
regulatory authorities and to the claimants, furthermore in every single case it was found the 
claimant did not initial the change but s igned their name within one inch of the change on the 
fee schedule. So how can this claim be made? "This man committed fraud, he charged me less 
than he said he would"! 
Yet another trumped up

· 
charge designed for headlines but with no basis in facts. 

The record shows awards were not related to claimant losses. 

If you examine losses of claimant accounts and the relationship to the awards, we see that Ron 
Ferrante Jr. a man in his working prime, was awarded 50% more than his actual losses, however 
Frankie Straccia a retired widow, was awarded 34% less than her actual losses. Nothing In the 
data and nothing in the documents supports this behavior. However in the testimony Ron 
Ferrante J r. was the most emotional and he was by far the most talented l iar. Frankie Straccia's 
l ies were more obvious and less emotionally delivered. 

The record shows the claimants set a pattern of lying through their attorney Mr. Fuller; 
At the ATTACHMENT/STRUCTURING CONFERENCE BEFORE DAVID A. GARFUNKEL, JUDGE OF 
THE SUPERIOR COURT at Manchester, N ew Hampshire, June 9, 2011, Superior Court No. 216-
2011-CV-00294 

Mr. Ful ler stated :  
(Page 4 of the court transcript) 
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''These people were solicited by Mr. Rowe. He told them that he had a highly respected secret 
:Wal l  Street trader who was giving him trading signals that would a llow them to outperform the 
market as the markets decl ined, as the Court knows, in  2008, he would  be able to avoid these 
significant 
(Page 5 of the court transcript) 
market drops. These people agreed to it. He said that he had to charge them an additional fee 
on top of their management fee of two percent that they were already being charged and 
added a five percent -- an additional .5 percent fee. That fee he  told them would be paid to this 
secret Wal l  Street trader whose identity he could [not] have reveal to them because of 
confidentiality documents he had signed with the lawyers relating to this scheme and -- but it 
was a sure-fire way to protect their portfolios as the markets continued to decline in 2008. 
These people agreed to it, they were charged the extra fee, and, in reality, there was no secret 
Wal l  Street trader feeding him signals, there was no additional fee being paid to a Wal l  Street 
trader in New York for these signals and he simply pocketed the money." 

This small quote is filled with lies. The most egregious being that 
1) The facts and documents prove not a single claimant was told they would be able to avoid 
the historic market decline of 2008. The record shows not a single claimant added the 
Behavioral st�ategy until 2009. FAAS was added in 2010. 
2) The record shows that every claimant paid less than the fee schedule at all times. 
3} Without focusing on Fuller's misstating the entity as a "secret Wal l  Street trader'' ... "in New 
York", the contract with the entity was produced a long copies of fronts and backs of canceled 
checks to that entity. The firm did exist, it was paid a fee, and there was a confidentiality 
clause. (This was another fantasy fraud claim, easily disproved by documentation}. 

Mr. Fuller further stated: 
(Page 21 of the court transcript) 
"with respect to RedBiack that's wholly owned by Mr. Rowe and Addess Realty is owned by Mr. 
Rowe and once someone that works in his office, a l l  the assets of these entities come from 
assets that were fraudulently obtained from the Focus entity and Mr. Rowe." 

The facts show that 
4) Mr. Rowe was one of 5 owners of Red Black and his share of ownership was less than 25% 
and 
5) he was one of 10 partners that owned Addess Realty, LLC and 
6) each owner contributed their persona l  funds to the partnership 
7&8) not one word was spoken on, and not once piece of evidence was put before the 
Arbitration panel on either of these entities. Both Red Black and Addess were d ismissed from 
the arbitration, with the claimants not even attempting to prove their malicious fraud charges. 

In just seven sentences Mr. Fuller on behalf of the claimants has l ied at least eight times (no 
fraud was found by the arbitrators). Each lie can be verified by documentation. This was 
consistent behavior of this lawyer and the claimants and gives the impression Mr. Fuller knew 
he didn't have a case and wanted to make it clear he was wil ling to destroy Mr. Rowe's 
reputation and firm with his vicious lies if Mr. Rowe continued to refuse to settle .  
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Mr. Ful ler continued this behavior in the arbitration h earings as well, for example: 

The record shows Mr. Fuller, the claimants' attorney regularly gave false testimony and for 
some unknown reason the arbitrators allowed this behavior. 

By no means the most egregious example was when Mr. Fuller made the claim that margin was 
used to create leverage in the accounts, which he did countless times. On one occasion he  
stated that his expert Dr. McCann 'created an exhibit that shows $33,000.00 of  margin costs for 
one of M r. Ferrante's accounts' . No such exhibit was presented. 

The truth was that Mr. Ferrante Jr. had margin interest charges for just one month in over 10 
years of being with the firm and the cost was negligible. Furthermore margin was not used to 
create leverage but only to avoid T +3 violations while he was waiting to be paid for securities 
he sold from his account to other investors! 

This type of behavior by Mr. Fuller was a regular occurrence in the arbitration hearings. 

The record shows Dr. McCann, expert for the claimantS (also for NH Bureau of Securities), lied 
under oath and gave testimony on the risk of the portfolios but never measured their risk. 

1) The transcript of the arbitration shows this exchange: 
MR. DAVID WARD: "You will talk about the risks of the portfolio, I think is one things that you 
a lso said?" 
Dr. McCann:  "Yes". 
However Dr. McCann did not present any analysis of actual measuring of the risk of any account 
or portfolio, in fact he stated he did not perform an analysis of the risk of the portfolios for the 
timeframe reviewed. That did not stop h im from making the unsubstantiated claims that 
claimant portfolios took 150% risk of the market or at times even more. Even though he had 
access to al l  the claimant statements he  did not measure the risk by standard deviation which 
he testified was "the most useful measure of risk of an investor's portfolio" and "the correct 

measure of risk for investors' entire portfolios". It is easy to see why he did not measure the risk 
in the portfolios by "the most correct measure". The most correct measure did not give him the 
answer his paying clients wanted. 

The a rbitrators should not have al lowed an "expert" who did not measure the risk of client 
accounts to speak about the risk in the accounts. It amounts to pure speculation. 

2) Dr. McCann makes an out an out lie when he stated that Mr. Rowe "cherry picked highly 
selected sub periods, not the full three and a half year period" for the standard deviation 
analysis Mr. Rowe performed when respond ing to questions raised by the SEC. Mr. Rowe was 
responding to questions raised by the SEC. Mr. Rowe did not choose the time periods 
questioned. The SEC made the selection through their communications. Furthermore a 
standard deviation analysis was performed (though not by Dr. McCann) for both the entire time 
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of the client relationship and also just the time claimant portfolios were in the Behavioral and 
FAAS, these showed conclusively that on average claimants as a group took 18% less risk than  
the markets over the entire time they were invested, but took 41% less risk while invested in 
the Behavioral and FAAS strategies. 

3) Three glaring errors were discovered and discussed in exhibits from Dr. McCann while he was 
speaking on them and still on the stand. Two mathematical errors (one of which was 
discovered by _Dr. McCann h imself while testifying) and his reports included an account of a 
Focus Capital client who was not a claimant, in numbers for profit and loss and potential 
damages (the only reports he made). 

4) Dr. McCann has been found to have knowingly given false testimony under oath by a federa l  
judge in the past and had a FINRA case vacated because of h is  lying, and the vacating of that 
case was not appealed (this can be found as EXHIBIT Focus-2 in the FINRA arbitration records 
which can be obtained from the State of NH). 

5) In a Freddie Mac case in the southern District of New York, there was an opinion that was 
issued March 27 of 2012 by Judge Cedarbaum. In that opinion, Judge Cedarbaum says that Dr. 
McCann's first study contained several significant errors and that there are other serious errors 
in his first study. She said Dr. McCann's analysis changed so many times in important ways and 
was so internally inconsistent that she found it unreliable and unpersuasive. 

6) I cannot personally speak to Dr. McCanns lying and false reports in other cases. What I can 
say without any doubt is that he at the very least misrepresented facts in this case and made 
glaring errors in h is reports. I submit that he did not perform a Standard Deviation analysis of 
the claimant portfolios because to do so would have been devastating to his clients and he felt 
not doing it freed him to make his unsubstantiated claims about portfolio risk. One has to ask 
why any attorney would hire such a man. The answer, I believe, is self-evident. 

Did the State of NH Bureau of Securities attempt to Influence the arbitrators? 

Prior to the Arbitration, the NH  Bureau of Securities repeatedly and dogmatically asked to be 
present in the room during the process. This request was welcomed by the claimants and it 
was refused by the defense. Through my counsel I, Mr. Rowe, repeatedly took the position that 
this was a blatant effort to influence the arbitrator's decision. The Bureau stated they felt it 
was important for them to help them learn the facts in the case, and that they could not 
complete their ongoing investigation without being present for the arbitration. Mr. Rowe's 
response through counsel was that we would be happy to provide the Bureau a copy of each 
day's rough transcripts as they became available  (generally the next morning after each day) 
and a copy of all exhibits. They continued to insist on being in the room during the arbitration; 
however they could not force themselves in without the defense's consent. 
What was the real purpose of the Bureau's request? The record shows that prior to receiving 
a l l  transcripts they, on August 29th the last day of the arbitration and just in time for 
deliberation of the arbitrators, released their Staff Petition for Relief In The Matter of Nicholas 
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Rowe and Focus Capital Wealth Management and made a Statement of Allegations that was 

·essentially a cut and paste of the claimant's al legations and notified the press. This was an 
amazing about face; they chose not to review the transcripts for the arbitration they said they 
had to attend just 2 weeks earlier, because it was vital to their investigation. The arbitrators 
could not have missed the front page article in the Manchester Union Leader courtesy of the 
State of NH. 

There was no finding of fraud. 

1) The arbitrators made no finding of facts in their award. Instead they merely repeat the 
a llegations of the claimants. 
2) The arbitrators did not make a finding of fraud. If they had, the judgment would have been 
at least three times greater. Mr. Ful ler told them if they found fraud, they would have to award 
$9,670,239.00. Without fraud he asked for $3,223,413.00. They ultimately awarded about 
$1,800,000.00. 
3) The State of NH Bureau of Securities removed a l l  language and mention of fraud in their 
Consent Order In The Matter of N icholas Rowe and Focus Capital Wealth Management, Inc. 
The State of NH had al l the power and could have said whatever they wanted in the consent 
order. They could have included the a l legation of fraud. In fact they could have found fraud 
had been committed but they did not. 
4) All claimants acknowledged receiving monthly statements. 
5)  All claimants acknowledged receiving and filing paperwork and forms they h ad signed shortly 
(within days) after they were completed. Before this action no claimant expressed any concern 
about paperwork not being accurate. 
6) Mr. Rowe's personal investments were invested in the same manner as the claimants. 

In summary 

The complainants are all known to one another and communicated with one another prior to 
their complaint. The award according to the chair of the arbitration panel d id not have to be 
based on any law and could be completely arbitrary and thus it is no indication in-of-itself, of 
wrongdoing. The arbitrators made no finding of fact, which is exactly what would be expected 
of an arbitrary rather than law based decision. The Chair regularly fel l  asleep requiring Mr. 
Fuller to take regular short breaks (about every hour to hour and a half) in an effort to keep him 
awake. Jane Venckus Zirlis, another member of the panel, regularly stated {off record ) "I don't 
understand exchange traded funds and they scare me". Furthermore, her confusion 
throughout the hearings is well documented, however, ms are ruled out as the reason for the 
award as they were held from inception, and the award ignored gains prior to 2008. A hold 
period of longer than a day could not have been the reason for the award because when ETFs 
held longer than a day were examined in  accounts that used Behavioral and FAAS they made an 
overal l  profit. All claimants invested in the Basil strategy made profits so it could not have been 
the reason for the award. Behavioral and FAAS strategies were ruled out as a reason for the 
award as they were not implemented prior to Jan 1 of 2009 and the award clearly included 
losses from 2008, furthermore the portfolio's  risk was much lower when these strategies were 
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used. Disclosure of fees could not have been the reason for the award, as the only changes to 
client fees resulted in l ower fees than the disclosure documents, and every client signed their 
·
name within an inch of the change. The most useful measure of risk and the correct measure of 
risk, standard deviation, showed that the accounts were not mismanaged or invested in a 
speculative way but rather took l ess risk than the market's, furthermore excluding 2008 the 
claimants accounts gained $739,000.00, therefore m ismanagement could not have been the 
reason for the award. A blatant a nd consistent pattern of lying, and misstatements was 
exhibited by the claimants attorney, the so-cal led expert witness Dr. McCann, and the claimants 
themselves, s�owing their testimony to be completely untrustworthy. Awards were not related 
to client losses, Ron Ferannte Jr. a young man, getting 50% more than h is actual losses while 
the widow Frankie Straccia received 34% less than  her actual losses. There was one clear 
correlation in the amount of the award to each cla imant. The claimants that gave the most 
emotional storytelling and told the most engrossing l ies got the greatest awards. The 
arbitrators did exactly what they talked about before the hearing even commenced. They 
ignored the law and made an arbitrary decision. No fraud, no mismanagement, no breach of 
fiduciary duty was committed or proven by anyone, including governments, their agencies, 
regulators, self�regulatory organizations, associations, and arbitrators. The only entity that 
made any finding was the NH Bureau of Securities, however in the face of the evidence in the 
record and summarized above, one is left to wonder on just what did the State of NH base its 
decision? 

The State of NH Bureau of Securities behavior is confusing to say the least. Stating they had to 
be at the arbitration hearing in order to learn facts but then releasing their 8-29-12 statement 
of allegations before even learning what the testimony at the hearing was, is an amazing about 
face. Is it possible that they wanted to influence the arbitrators even at the expense of creating 
the impression that they could care less about the facts? What changed in the two weeks from 
the time the state had said it was crucial for them to learn everything they could from the 
arbitration, to when they made their public release of the a llegations before having time to 
review the transcripts and exhibits? The sworn testimony from the arbitration and the 
transcripts from the proceedings could have shed a great deal of l ight on the matter the state 
said they were investigating. This action robbed them of the opportunity to examine the 
credibility of the claimants, and the opportunity to incorporate the facts revealed at the 
arbitration hearing in their thought process. It is confusing to Mr. Rowe why the state felt the 
need to remove Mr. Rowe's freedom of speech rights with regard to this matter. Some people 
might think that rather than instill confidence in the regulator this action could give the 
impression of a regulator that had something to hide. 

It truly was a sad day when Mark Connelly left the NH Securities Department. His reporting of 
the incompetence or corruption in state government was a real eye opener for many. (see the 
book "Cover-Up" by Mark Connelly) 

An honest review of the facts proves beyond a shadow of a doubt this affair was nothing more 
than former clients attempting to recover losses from the historic market collapse of 2008 and 
either an incompetent state securities department, or one which lost its moral compass. 
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Shortly after Ron Ferrante Jr. learned of Francis Straccia's lies he met with me and told me "I 
· know you didn't do anything wrong but I will join them and say you did. You need to pay me 
$80,000.00 or 1 wil l  tel l  my father and Bil l Duby. This thing wil l  become known and you will lose 
everything: your business, your money, your reputation. You need to pay me to be quiet. I 
have done this before to Dave Lasher (sp?). He lost everything and the State of NH shut him 
down and barred him from the industry, he lost everything and the same thing wil l  happen to 
you. I know you didn't do anything wrong but you need to pay me to be quiet". 

This case has always been an insurance fraud case. The SEC would make a grievous error 
should it depend on the actions of a corrupt or incompetent State of NH Bureau of Securities in 
taking action against me and or Focus Capital. 

The State of NH findings are basically a cut and paste of the claims found in the original 
complaint filed in court and in the FINRA arbitration.  By examining the evidence of fraudulent 
perjury in the FINRA arbitration, it can be proved beyond a shadow of a doubt that NH made a 
grievous error in the Consent Order issued by the New Hampshire Bureau of Securities 
Regulations in In The Matter of Nicholas Rowe, et al ., COM2011-0037. 
By depending on the findings of the State of NH Bureau of Securities, the SEC adopts these 
grievous errors and repeats the harm done to an innocent victim of these malicious perjures. 

Venue Location 

As mentioned in my May 27, 2014 1etter, I request that the location of any venue for any 
hearing be Boston, Massachusetts. I am destitute, any location further away than Boston would 
be the equivalent of a refusal to a llow me a hearing. 

Attestation 

I certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America, that the 
information and statements made in this document, including exhibits and any other information 
submitted, are true and correct, and that I am signing this form as a free and voluntary act. 

Signature: Date: 

Nicholas Rowe 
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State ofNew Hampshire 

1�12 
\David Ward; Esq. 
!Midlacfs, Ward cl Rabinovitz;, LLP 
'One Beacod Stnet, 21111 Floor 

E
. OIIOn. MA 02108 

. 
. 

: Nichola Rowe and Focus Capiral Wcahh M� 

Mr. Wam; 
l 

Department of State 
Bureau of Securities Regulatioa 

J 07 North Main Sarect. Szate House Rm. 204 
Concord, NH 03301-49!9 

Tdeplumc: (603) 271-1463 
Fax: (603} :!71-7933 

!nus Jcuer it a follow-up to our pftono COIIVe:ruioa on 113 112�12 at which time this oft'lce infonned you 
th. Wlless we receive certain aasurances from the above named persons, this office wUl rate immediate 
;� to 1t4JP dJe trading in Exdl� Tn.ded FIUllb, Jnvcne Excban,sc Tl'lldcd Funds and Leveraged 
� Tl'll!ed Funck inntail accounts during the pendency of'lflis matter. The Bureau requests thlt 
ihc .,vc ptr'IOfJS sian an agroemcmt tn: 
i 
i 1 .  
; I i: 
; 

.IJnmodiatdy case trading lq any ExcbaDJe Traded Funcb; 
Notfi¥ Cetol Ffnanclal Savlca ofdte Burau �pCmC:nt tu restrfgt tndins; 
Revoke any� tnding at6«ity for Eu:hange Traded Fwds for all custom«s unless 
specific bdbtc aulhority is received hm a customer In writiug after having been made aware of 
F1NRA NM fl9..31 .  

ll'lllie atiOVe temat are not �  upon by the ead of business on 1/J0/2012. an immediate � of 
privflep m� result. Should dicrc be a liccnao J'II:VOCdioJJ or IUSpCl1$ion. court action may muir 
IIWOlnbnesrt of a receiver to take over the aff'airs of the business. 
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August 3, 2012 

Enclosed please f.ind a regulatory notice from the FINRA to its members and registered representatives and 
a form that must be signed and returned to our office. 

Please sign and date the endosed form, and return It to our office as soon as possible. For any account 
that we have not received this signed form for by August 10, 2012, we will restrict trading on your accounts 
until we receive the signed form at our office. 

8JclsgrounQ Information pn f!NBA. Thflr Mf!!)ber Firms aQ!! Hgw !hex Conduct Bmf!Jejs 
FINRA is an organization made up of the members, which are broker--dealers, referred to as member firms. 
Some employees of Member Firms are registered representatives. Their job is to sell securities to the 
general public. Typically, the way they do business Is they call the client and recommend the Client buy or 
sell a security and they make a profit on the commission on that sale. Please note that Focus Capital is not 
a member firm <?f FINRA. and fs not in the business of selling securities. These members firms typically 
require their registered representatives to do some careful due diligence before recommending the sale of 
any financial instrument; however, the registered representative typically does not have a duty to continue 
to monitor that investment oru:e it has been sold to the client and the client has it in their account. In most 
cases, the dfents are using a buy-and-hold strategy, not a trading or managed strategy. The 
client/customer has the responsibility of monitoring their own investments and making sure they are 
performing the way they want them to. Again, Focus Capital is not in that business. We do monitor dient 
Investments on a regular basis and we do buy and sell securities when we feel it is the prudent thing to do 
on behalf of our clients. Because the registered representative is typically not monitoring the security once 
it is in the account, this can present a danger If someone buys a security and nobody is really paying 
attention to it. 

The enclosed regulatory notice is a warning to member firms that inverse and leveraged ETFs are not 
appropriate to be sold for a buy-and-hold strategy. While we encourage our clients to read through the 
whole notice, we will draw attention to a specific part of the notice, and the difference between a buy-and­
hold strategy during that timeframe, and the typical performance or risk in client accounts that Focus 
Capital was managing during that same timeframe. This should help you understand the difference 
between these very different strategies. 

On page 2 you will note the two bullet points the line before that reads, "For example, between December 
1, 2008, and April 30, 2009:" and this follows: 

� "The Dow Jones U.S. Oil & Gas Index gained 2 percent, while a n  ETF seeking to deliver twice the 

Index's daily return fell 6 percent and the related ETF seeking to deliver twice the Inverse of the 
index's daily return fell 26 percent. 

A R e g t u e r t: d ln v e s l me n t  A dv i s o r  
1 6  6 S o u  l it  R i u r  R o a d • S u l tt: 2 J j ,  Bedford. N H • 0 3 1  J 0 •  P il a n t: 6 O J .  6 1 7. J I 0 0  Fax 6 0 J .  6 f 7. J 4 J 0 



)I> An ETF seeking to deliver three times the daily return of the Russell lOOO Financial Services Index 
fell  53 percent while the index actually gained around 8 percent. The related ETF seeking to deliver 
three times the Inverse of the index's dally return declined by 90 percent over the same period:" 

· Of great interest but not noted In this Notice Is how much risk was taken by these type of ETFs during the 
time examined. ETFs that are similar to those mentioned in the first bullet took more than two times the 

. risk of the S&P 500 (as measured by standard deviation}. ETFs that are similar to those mentioned in the 
second bullet took more than six times the risk of the S&P 500. aearly a buy-and-hold strategy was a 

disaster during that time. They took much more risk and provided negative returns. 

A recent sampling of client accounts of Focus Capital that used inverse and leveraged ETFs during that same 

time period showed an average return that was greater than the S&PSOO and these same accounts took a n  
average of 11% less risk than the S&PSOO. 

Focus Capital has not used, and has no plans to use, inverse or leveraged ETFs in a buy-and-hold strategy. 
However we feel it Is Important for our clients to be fully Informed. 

For any clients who do not return the enclosed form to our office by August lOth, we will immediately stop 
· trading ETFs in their accounts and will make up new Investment agreements to reflect the change . 

Thank you, 

� -
Nicholas Rowe, CFP 

Nothing in this letter is a solicitation to buy or sell any security. Past performance Is not a guarantee of 

future performance. Focus Capital sample account risk and performance numbers were used for 
comparative use only to the specific time frame used in the FINRA Notice, and must not be relied upon for 
an indication of what may have happened in your account. For actual performance in your account please 
call our office for an appointment. 

A R e g h t e r e df ll l1 e 3 1 11fe lf l  A d v i s o r  
J 66So u t h  R l u : r R o a d • S II i l e  2 3 5 .  Bedford, N H • 0 3 1 1  O •  Ph o n e  6 03 . 6  4 7 .  5 4 0 0  F a  x 6 0 J ,  6 4  7 ,  5 4 1 0  



1/We have received a copy of F INRA Regulato ry Notice 09-31, furthermore, 1/we 

u nderstand that Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) i nverse ETFs a nd leveraged ETFs may be 

used in my/our accounts, a nd 1/we reaffirm that the discretionary trading a uthority that 

1/we assigned to Focus Capita l remains on m y/our accounts. 

Sign Name Date Sign Name Date 

Print Name Print Name 



We a l t h  M a n 2.geme n l l nc .  

August 1 5, 201 2  

Ceros Financial Services 

Re: ETF Trading Restriction 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that we are restricting trading of Exchange Traded Funds 
(ETFs) in a portion of our client accounts as of 8/1 7/12. We have done this through our trading 
software (Rebalance Express) as clients tell us in writing that it is ok to trade ETFs in their accounts 
we are removing them from being restricted. 

Attached is a letter to Focus Capital from the State of New Hampshire Bureau of Securities 
Regulation. requesting that we agree to cease trading in any ETFs in client accounts until we receive 
a form signed by the client stating that they have received FINRA Regulatory Notice 09-3 1 ,  they 
understand that ETFs, including inverse and leveraged, may be used in their accounts and they 
reaffirm discretionary trading authority is given to Focus Capital. A copy of the form clients are 
signing and returning to our office is enclosed. 

We have enclosed a list of clients that remain restricted until we receive the signed disclosure from 
them. 

Please note that the required date of acceptance of 8/I0/12 has been extended to the 8/1 7112. 

Please caU if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas B. Rowe 
President 

Enclosures (3) Ltr to Focus Capital from State ofNH dated 813/12 
Fonn to be signed & returned by clients 
Current Client Restricted List 

A R e g l s l e r edl�t v " s t lff4 R f  A dy f s o r  

1 66So lil lr R t v e r  R o a d • S u i te 2 3 5 .  B e dfo rd, N H • 0 3 / 1  0 •  P h o n e  6 0 3 . 6 4 7 .  5 4 0 0  Fax 6  0 3 .  6 4 7 .  S 4 ]  0 



I 

State ofNew Hampshire 
Department of State 

Bureau of Securities Regulation 

J07 Nonh Main Sll"ec:t. State HOI!St Rm. 204 
Concord, NH 03301-4989 

Telephone: (603) 271-1463 
Fax: (603) 271-7933 

! 813fl012  
i 

iDavid Ward; Esq. 
iMidlacls, Ward & Rabinovitz, LLP 
'one Beacon Street, 2111 Floor 

E
· oston, MA 02108 

e: Nichol" Rowe and FOCU$ Capital Wealth Management 

, Mr. Ward; 
i 

!rhis lcttcr is a follow-up ro our phone c:onvc:m�tion on 713 1/2012 at which time this efface informed yuu 
that unless we receive certain assurances from the above named persons, this office will lake immediate 
�ction to stop the lral:fmg in Exchange Traded Funds, Inverse Exchange Traded Funds and Leveraged 
l::xchange Traded Funds in retail accounts during the pendency of this matter. The Bun:au requests that 
lJte .t>ove per$011S sign an agreement ro: 

1 .  Immediately cease trading in any Exchange Traded Funds; 
2. NotifY Ceros Financial Services of the Bureau agreement ro restrict trading; 
3. Revoke any discretioruuy trading attbority for Exdlange Tra:led Funds for all customers unless 

specific trading authority is received trom a customer in writing after futving been made aware of 
FINRA NM 09�31.  

the above terms arc n ot  agreed upon by the end of business on 811012012, an immediate suspension of 
privileges may result. Should there be a license revocation or suspension. cow1 action may result 

!he appointment of a receiver to take over the affairs of the business. 

any questions, please calf. 



1/We have received a copy of FINRA Regulatory Notice 09-31, furthermore, 1/we 

understand that Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) inverse ETFs and leveraged ETFs may be 
used in my/our accounts, a nd 1/we reaffirm that the discretionary trading authority that 

1/we assigned to Focus Capital rema ins on my/our accounts. 

Sign Name Date Sign Name Date 

Print Name P rint Name 
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• "There is nothing · 

so powerful as truth" . 
Do\NIELWI!BSTER 

·school 
_,athletics 
headed . ' 
'for cuts? 
+Mayor vs. supt.: 
Sports cuts suggested, but 
not everyone is in favor. 

By DOUG ALDEN 
.�e:!'.�mJ:'.li!:.����.L.��� 

MJINCHESTtR "'- Some mid­
dle school and junior varsity 
sports at Manchester schools 
are not officially on the chop· 
ping block - at least not yet 

Mayor Ted Gatsas reiterated 
his opposition Thursdayto cut­
ting some athletic programs to 

,I ,.. . - • •  -� -lt... ......... ... __ ,...,.:a 

BridgeWater'S 
Old Home . 
Cemetery, 
wherethe .. 

omate lron· 
gate was 

stolen and sold 
for scrap. 
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1785 gate stolen, sold for scraE 
' ' . ' . . ' ' .:• 

+RemoU, cemetery: By 
the time t"eft was noted, it 
was too late to save gate. . .. 

BY BOB HOOKWAY 
Union leader Correspondent 

man. is accused of stealing the to townspeople as part of t1l 
iron gate from a 1785 cemetery trance to Old Home Cellli 
in Bridgewatei; .and selling it as the oldest among a half•( 
s�p to a salvage dealer. · . town cemeteries in Bridgew, 

A Grafton County Superior And, said the chiet the 8 
Court grand jury this month iri- believed to have been stol 
dieted John Campbell, 43, on a May 2011. By the t:itne itS ( 
felony charge of theft by unau- pearance was discovered <!) 

. In a case that the president of · thorized taking of an item with a ported, and Campbell art 
the New Hampshire Old Grave- value greater than $1,000. the gate was long gone anq 
yard ��roclation said reflects a But Bridgewater Police ChiefEJ destroyed. f 
disturbing trend in tol;lgh eco- Thompson said Thursday the gate 

· 

nomic times, a North Sandwich had mucl� higher historic; value ,.See GateJ 

HATS ON IN HOPKINTON Inmates . . 

hack into 
. NH priso 





man·rexetrea w: · suommea letters ox support 
"I don't know anything from his customer, Granite 

· about it," he said. He said the �tate : Goncrete; � potential 

MeanwhUe, he JUS£ wams 
DOT to take his $6;000 check " 
for use of the track. . .  

_._, ____ ........__��Ueci{rpiil P,ageA1: --_ POT so�t bids,'£9�--0pera:-. .  :�me.c .·MPnadnoCk Paper 
· 

- -. -�-- -· ti(lrt'o1the HillsOO"rtfbranth Mills; and asnowmoblle club. 
' electronic 2010 fur allegedly· fighting in rail line in February, and that His bid was rejected, he 
nd central- the :parking lQt outside. the process is ongoing. 

· said. 

· : .  '1toJtist ,&.oe.sn't: laok good,". 
he said, -"tb:at·you've got -this 
state_ legislator running on 
this state corridor for free:' 

tereby pro-. facility after work. Cartee- Hilts said Leishman lost the �atever happens, Leish- mhayWard@.unionleader.CJJtri 
view of the · tions Commissioner William 
history and Wrenn called fur art external 
·ugh access criminal investigation by state 
:urate, real- poliCe, rather than an internal ·Rowe 
on, correc- . - affairs reView, Which caused 

. 

make more · Jordan· to lose his: benefits ____ ....... __ 
......... ,. ...... � .. . ---Contlnuedfrom PageA1 

l.S related to' through much of the suspen-
::urlty, help-- sian. He was found not guilty crlsis: the Focus Capital web- tamers were particularly vul­

nerable to the high risks of 
this trading strategy:• Bureau 
Enforceltlent Deputy Direc­
tor: Jeff Spill said in a state-

racking and of a simple assault charge and site said. · 

1ffenders as returned to work. two days · 'Ihe Bureau is loa� to 
.gh the sys-· later with $29,000 in hack pay, suspend Rowe's investinent 

mate, or in­
to hack into 
n,n said ·Jar­
are in there, 
� access to 
ttencmg in­
rogramming 
mates, staff 
I they could 
t. 1hey could 
information. 

, 

Merrimack 
� the New 
18rtment of 
rlered with 
free expres­
im. $150,000 
ms suspend­
)m his job as 
leer at Con­
n in March 

but � docked a week's pay.- license and seek a permanent 
Jordan, a former chapter cease-and-desist orde1; as well 

president of New England Po- as an administrative fine, the 
Uce . Benevolent Association news release said:. 

ment . .  ·• · 
While the investments seek ens-

to double or triple profits, "c6r- tomel'S lost 
respondingty, when the ETF hundreds of LOcal '250, representing more "Given that many of these 

than 300 unionized prison customers were in retirement 
wor� across New Hamp- and do not have the abilitY to 
shlre, realizes that. some wUl recoup los5es that younger 
accuse him of siniply having ·individuals might, these ens­
an ax to grind in spe� out 

loses value, the loss in value tho usands , AC' 
in the customer account is in account NICHOuu ROWE 
also c9mpounded over time. value . be� 

about the computer breach. 
but he said he has heard from 
staff at the prison who are wor-
ried about the incident 

· 

"There are guaids and clvil:­
ians there workirig ·that don't 
even know · what happened 
on Friday,� ·said JQrdan. Hlhey 
need to be more open and . 
honest When S.omething like 
this happens. People there and 
the public need to know:' · 

pfo.e/y@unionleader.rom 

which can result in quick and tween 2008 and 2010:' 

Experience Matters... . 
• Devoted to Persona_l Injury Law for 25 Years 
• Former _ICU & Trauft'la Nurse. · 

• Pa_st President of American Association of Nurse Attorneys . 

FREE CONSULTATION . 
• �Appointments Available 

1l1 . . .leanne Trott Law Otliccs 624-7 500 
\\rh<;itl•: www.trottlawoffin•nh.cum 8 1 4  Elm Slreel • ;\la ncht'!iter. N H  

ii!!llnt!lll!ill!!!l��o.;;;;��ic::;,�J ii l 1 1.55 

603·43 1 ·2822 PORIKIA.COM 
Open Monday 1tvu Saturday 8AM to 8PM. Sunday. 1 1AM·to 5PM 
U.S. ROutE 1 AT 1 80  MIRONA RD • PORTSMOUTH, NH 

' ·. 


